ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 16, 2004
8:04 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Coghil |l

Represent ati ve Seat on
Representative G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Lynn
Representative Berkow tz

OTHER LEG SLATORS PRESENT

Representative Beth Kerttul a
Senator Kim El ton

COWM TTEE CALENDAR
OVERVI EW — DEPARTMENT COF TRANSPORTATI OV PUBLI C FACI LI TI ES
TAPES

04-35, SIDE(S) A & B
04-36, SIDE(S) A

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH convened the neeting of the House State
Affairs Standing Commttee at 8:04 a.m

SUMVARY OF | NFORVATI ON

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH introduced Comm ssioner Mke Barton, Al aska
Department of Transportation/Public Facilities (DOI/PF); and
Deputy Conm ssioner Tom Briggs, Director, Alaska Marine H ghway
System (AVHS), Al aska Depart nent of Transportation/Public
Facilities. He explained that the House State Affairs Standing
Committee has plenary jurisdiction over DOI/PF relating to
public facilities. Currently, AMHS nmaintains a headquarters in
Juneau at an area designated as three-mle. The proposed | ease
property [Wards Cove Plant] w Il house the headquarters in
Ket chi kan. There is trenmendous public interest in this

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 16, 2004



proposal, therefore, the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
is holding this public hearing.

There were no questions from the comittee prior to the
begi nni ng of testinony.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH outlined the points he wanted Conm ssioner
Barton and Deputy Comm ssioner Briggs to address as follows: A
background of what the lease is; why the state thinks it is in
the public interest to have this nove take place; sone of the
background on what led to the decision to have the |ease and to
make the nove; why it is in the best interest of AVHS to have a
| ease on that particular building and nove the personnel from
Juneau to Ketchi kan; what the beneficial inpact is to AVHS, and
what the cost is to the public.

COWM SSI ONER BARTON addressed the governor's concern regarding
the fiscal situation and having the state operate in a nore
efficient and business-1like nmanner. Shor esi de managenent near
the fleet provides better opportunities for nmanagenent to
interact with the actual operations. The departnent and the
governor believe that this nove will be beneficial and will, in
the long run, be a nore cost effective, efficient way to run
AVHS; give better service to Al askans and help enable AVHS to
reduce the anmount of general fund subsidy that it requires. The
estimated costs of the nove are between $340,000 to $520, 000
Savi ngs of about $240,000-plus are anticipated. The Ket chi kan

Gateway Borough wll reinburse the nobve cost through |ease-
paynment incentives in the form of reduced |ease paynents unti

after the cost of the npbve is anortized. He related his
understanding that the reduced l|lease rate wll be effective

until 100 percent of the cost of the nove is anortized.

COM SSI ONER BARTON, in response to Chair Wyhrauch's question
as to whether that was his "understanding” or if that is what
the |l ease actually says, responded that he thinks that is what
the | ease says. However, he said that he does not have a copy
of the lease with him He inforned the committee that the |ease
has not been signed, and is still being reviewed. In response
to a comment from Representative G uenberg, Conmm ssioner Barton
said that although the decision to enter into the |ease has not
been made, the decision to nove the headquarters [of AWHS] to
Ket chi kan have been nade, the lease is still in the works. The
decision to nove was nmade after Decenber 8, 2003.

COW SSI ONER BARTON, in response to Chair Wyhrauch, specified
that he had been involved with the decision-naking process of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 16, 2004



this nove since last fall when the Ketchikan Gateway Borough

approached the State of Al aska. He deferred to Deputy
Comm ssioner Briggs for the answer to the questions about the
personnel being included in the process. Comm ssi oner Barton

recalled that Ceorge Cappaci, General Manager, AMHS, was
i nvolved in advising the personnel of the plans.

DEPUTY COW SSIONER BRIGGS stated there were no fornal

di scussions wth the enployees. In response to Chair
Weyhrauch's question of "Wy?", Deputy Comm ssioner Briggs said
"we hadn't gotten to that point yet." He explained fully what
his tasks were at that tine. In further response to Chair

Weyhrauch, Deputy Comm ssioner Briggs said his job was to work
with the borough to negotiate a position in which a formal offer
coul d be nmade.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH restated his original question to M. Briggs
regardi ng who was supposed to be talking to AVHS staff regarding
t he proposed nove.

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER BRI GGS responded that he and Comm ssioner
Barton, and down through the general nmanager were discussed as
the people who were to do that. M. Briggs related that he had
al so requested that the Departnent of Personnel, D ane Corso and
her staff, put together a teamto sit down with AVHS enpl oyees
to discuss a potential nove.

DEPUTY COW SSIONER BRIGGES, in response to Representative
Gruenberg's questions, responded that the governor had nmade the
decision to nove AWVHS headquarters to Ketchikan. He went on to
say that Ketchikan has been trying for years to get AMS
headquarters to nove there. M. Briggs reviewed the positive
aspects of noving AVHS headquarters to Ketchi kan.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH referred to a February 2003, Welsh, Witney
architect's study of the Ward Cove building [ which is the
buil ding the Ketchi kan Gateway Borough proposes to house ANMHS
headquarters]. The report discussed existing asbestos, nold,
wi ndows that couldn't be opened, and suggested that a hazardous
materials survey should be perforned. He asked Deputy
Comm ssioner Briggs if he could performthat survey.

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER BRI GGS responded that Vern Jones, Departnent
of Administration, Division of General Services, would be able
to answer that question since Departnent of Admnistration is
adm nistering the |ease. Deputy Conmm ssioner Briggs said the
Steve Flodin report discusses the w ndows. The Departnent of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 16, 2004



Adm nistration requires a conplete hazardous materials survey;
as a condition of the |ease. He nentioned that the problens
with the building will be renedi ated before AVHS occupies it.

COWM SSI ONER BARTON recalled that the building nust neet all
state and federal |aws and regul ations.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH again asked if a hazardous materials survey was
going to be performed before the state signs the |ease.

COWM SSI ONER BARTON deferred to t he Depart ment of
Adm nistration; but related his understanding that the building
will be certified for occupancy before any staff are noved into
t he space.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if DOI/PF would reconmend that such a
survey be conpleted prior to the signing of the |ease.

COMWM SSI ONER BARTON said he would be happy to nmke such a
request in witing.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if DOI/PF will reconmend that the state
require a structural engineering survey be done prior to the
signing of the |ease.

COMM SSI ONER BARTON responded in the affirmative.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH spoke of a My 2003 report from SR
International witten when the National GCceanic and Atnospheric
Adm nistration (NOAA) had considered docking a ship on that
ar ea. He asked if shoreside power is available to AVHS vessel s
at the docking area.

DEPUTY COW SSIONER BRI GGS answered in the affirmative. The
survey notes sone concern in the area of the Conprehensive
Environnental Response Liability Act (CERCLA) with regard to
susceptibility to shared liability for on-site contamnation
unl ess environnental due diligence assessnments were perforned.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked if the Departnent of Law has reviewed this
proposal for potential liability to the State of Alaska in the
case of a substance being found either on-site or off-shore. He
also inquired as to the potential up-welling of those hazardous
subst ances. Chair Weyhrauch expressed concern over the process
being too abrupt and hasty. He stated he doesn't feel there has
been adequate time or sufficient information for the public to
under stand what is happeni ng.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 16, 2004



DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER BRI GGS said he was only recently nade aware
of that report and has not had a chance to review it. However,
he assured the commttee that he would take this information to
the Departnment of Admnistration. He further assured the
committee that the state would never put any of it's enployees
or the state in harnms way. He said he will recomrend that the
Department of Law and the Departnent of Adm nistration review
the report before the | ease is signed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG queried Deputy Conm ssioner Briggs
about a Mrch 15, 1997, report on Inpact Analysis from
I nformation Insights, which is fairly negative.

DEPUTY COW SSIONER BRIGGS stated he was famliar with that
report and agreed that it is a very negative report. He also
spoke to the advantages of having the shipyard near the docking

facility. In response to Chair Wyhrauch, Deputy Conm ssioner
Briggs agreed that any information covering this subject would
be nmade available to the legislature. |In response to a question

from Representative Seaton, Deputy Comm ssioner Briggs explained
that currently work is being done to AMHS ships in various
| ocations around the country.

Gener al di scussion was held on various aspects of ship
mai nt enance and requirenents by AVHS for overhauls and general
mai nt enance.

CHAIR VEYHRAUCH initiated discussion with Deputy Conm ssioner
Briggs as to why the Wards Cove |ocation was chosen over other
pl aces in the state.

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER BRI GGS offered that the Ketchi kan Gateway
Borough cane forward with the |ease offer. He noted that he was
never directed not to look at any other offers that m ght cone

up.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked how the shipyard in Ketchikan is
currently managed and who here in Juneau is responsible for
interacting with the shipyard.

DEPUTY COW SSIONER BRI GGS responded that Al aska Ship and
Drydock, under a contract from Al DEA, operate the shipyard. He
explained that the contact is on a project-by-project basis -
port engineers are primarily the ones to interact wth the
shi pyard.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 16, 2004



CHAIR WEYHRAUCH stressed the inportance  of encour agi ng
i ndustrial developnent in all areas of the State of Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked the comm ssioner and deputy
commi ssioner to comment on the inpact to the community as well
as to the enployees who are going to be affected by this nove.
In previous studies the inpact is shown to be great.

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER BRI GGS expl ai ned how the efficiency of AMHS
w Il be maintained and possibly inproved by the rel ocation.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if the Marine Transportation Advisory
Board (MIAB) had revi ewed and approved the nove.

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER BRI GGS answered that it had not.

A short discussion of the MIAB invol venent or non-invol vement
followed with Chair Wyhrauch being very firmin believing MAB
shoul d have been nore involved in this entire issue.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG conmented on being involved with people
in the Naval fleet in conparison with AWVHS ships and their
ability to interface wth the people on the ships to nore
effectively nanage and conmuni cat e.

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER BRI GGS agreed with that idea. He said he
doesn't see the disadvantage of having shoreside nmanagenent in
Ket chi kan. In response to a coment from Representative
G uenberg relative to the amount of tinme Deputy Comm ssioner
Briggs spent talking to his predecessors, Deputy Conm ssioner
Briggs responded that the only talked with Geg Dronker,
Assistant Director and head of Marine Engineering for AWVHS and
Geor ge Cappaci, General Manager, ANMHS.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced he was opening up public testinony and
asked that the conmm ssioner and deputy conmmi ssioner remain in
the roomwhile the general public testified.

DEPUTY COW SSIONER BRI GGS explained that there are narine
safety officers in Ketchikan. The Captain of the port is here

i n Juneau. He said he has no idea whether there are plans to
nove the Captain of the port to Ketchikan. In response to Chair
Weyhrauch's conmment regarding how the systemwi |l save any noney

if no one noves and all of the staff have to be replaced, Deputy
Comm ssioner Briggs clarified that it was never the intent of
AVHS to save noney by | osing people.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 16, 2004



DEPUTY COW SSIONER BRIGGES, in response to Representative
Seaton's question, said the lease at three nmle is privately

owned and is in effect wuntil 2014. The Departnent of
Adm nistration is responsible for managing that contract. The
estimation is that the space will be filled fairly quickly. In

response to Representative Holm Deputy Comm ssioner Briggs
confirnmed that this nove is an admnistrative proposal for a
better administration rather than a proposal to save nobney. He
related his opinion that this proposal is so close to break-even
that the contention is justified.

PAT DAVIDSON, Director, Legislative Audit Division, spoke to her
review of the discussion paper prepared by Pacific Marine
Technical Services in terms of the cost savings that were
addressed in the paper. She pointed out that "the true val ue of
the two alternative |leases isn't necessarily going to the be the
value of the three mle lease.” |In response to a question from
Representative G uenberg regarding that she was only being asked
to look at the |ease issue, she responded that she was given a
stack of docunents and asked if, in a short anount of tine, she
could read through them and make coments. She stated she
focused on those areas she knew the nobst about. M. Davidson
explained that originally her involvenent cane about because
there were requests made of the Legislative Budget and Audit
Commttee to do an audit. These types of issues, in her opinion,
woul d take a full audit to evaluate, therefore, she said she is
unabl e to comrent on these other natters.

DAVID LANDI S, Vice Myor, Cty and Borough of Ketchikan ,spoke
positively to the proposal and the |ease and the appropriateness
of the Wards Cove Plant to house AMHS headquarters. He went on
to say that the building in question is a very fine building
structurally and environnmentally sound. The Ketchikan Gateway
Borough is prepared to address [the state's] concerns, whatever
they may be, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Vice Mayor Landis if, in his
opinion, the reason for the nove was a cost savings to the
state.

VI CE MAYOR LANDI S responded that [the reason for the nobve] was
two-fold, referring to the managenent advantages that Deputy
Comm ssioner Briggs spoke of as well as the cost savings that
menti oned by Ms. Davi dson.

JACK SHAY, Menber, Assenbly of City and Borough of Ketchikan,
pointed out that there are 43-45 positions, less than 3/10 of 1

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 16, 2004



percent of the Juneau workforce affected. M. Shay al so pointed
out that Juneau is the only comunity in Southeast that is
growing. He went on to comment that when the MV Taku is taken
out of service and the other new ferries are put into service,
Juneau will regain at |east 40 positions.

BRUCE BOTELHO, Mayor, Cty and Borough of Juneau, spoke to the
standards set by Chair Wwyhrauch in relation to the proposed
nove and the nyths that he considers surround the proposed nove.
He suggested certain actions that he believes the |egislature
shoul d take. In response to a coment by Representative
Gruenberg regarding the potential of other state agencies noving
to different communities, Mayor Botelho said it is his feeling
that it is inportant to know what inpacts of such noves are
particularly when they are as nonunental as these.

BOB DOLL, Executive Director, Better Ferries for Al aska

explained that Better Ferries for Alaska is a coalition of
organi zations with a conmmon interest in the enhancenent of
Al aska's ferry system and the inprovenent of the service that it
provides to the coastal communities of Al aska. He stressed the
unease of the coalition wth the proposed nobve of AMHS

headquarters from Juneau to Ketchi kan. M. Doll listed severa
points for the <conmttee and general public to consider
regarding the nove. He also offered the opinion of the

coalition that the information that has been nade available is
sonewhat fictitious, and he made corrections that were of his
own opi ni on.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Doll whether the Energency
I nci dent Conmmand System that has been established, not just for
Honel and Security but for all kinds of energencies, involves the
AVHS. He al so asked whether the novenent of people who m ght be
involved in this Conmmand System negatively inpact the system
shoul d AVHS be renoved fromthe system

MR. DOLL indicated that he is not totally famliar with all of
the details of the Conmand System

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH requested that an answer be submtted to the
commttee in witing by whoever can answer it.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that there would only be tinme for the

testinmony of two other people and asked that all others w shing
to testify submt their coments to the committee in witing.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 16, 2004



JIM SEPEL, Marine Surveyor, expressed his surprise with the
recent announcenent by the governor of the proposed nove of AMHS
headquarters to Ketchi kan. He said he doesn't agree that this is
a wse nove. M. Sepel went on to urge the commttee to request
a proper cost benefit analysis on this proposed nove.

FAYE BAIN, retired Leasing and Fiscal Manager, Departnent of
Adm ni stration, directed her coments to the |ease and rel ated
her opinion that it's not conplete and contains sections that
are contradictory. As soneone who is conpletely famliar with
the way a |lease should read, she highlighted the follow ng
guestions: 1. What is the accurate nunber of square feet? 2. Is
the space at three mle going to be backfilled in a tinely
manner? She also highlighted that the building is old, danp,
nol dy, and has inadequate wring. However, the cost benefit
analysis that is included in the |ease does not talk about
tenant inprovenents over and above what the Ketchi kan Gateway
Borough said it wll do. She comented further that the
commttee should look at all of the costs involved, as this
paperwor k does not cover themwell.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH encouraged those interested to give the
commttee their coments in witing. He asked that Deputy
Comm ssioner Briggs also address any further coments to the
commttee in witing.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

There were no announcenents.

COW TTEE ACTI ON

The committee took no action.

ADJ OQURNMENT

The overview was adjourned at 9:50 a. m

NOTE: The neeting was recorded and handwitten |log notes were
t aken. A copy of the tape(s) and log notes may be obtained by
contacting the House Records Ofice at State Capitol, Room 3,
Juneau, Alaska 99801 (rmailing address), (907) 465-2214, and
after adjournnment of the second session of the Twenty-Third
Al aska State Legislature this information nay be obtained by
contacting the Legislative Reference Library at (907) 465-3808.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 16, 2004



